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Trustee’s Report
For the Year Ended August 2024

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s report of
the charitable company for the period 15t September 2023 to 31 August 2024. The annual report
serves the purposes of both a Trustees' report and a directors’ report and strategic report under
company law.

The Trust operates four primary schools in Wigan for pupils aged 4-11 years and one secondary
school/UTC in Bolton. Its schools have a combined pupil capacity of 1980 plus 52 Nursery places and
had numbers on roll (NOR) of 1,703 pupils and 36 Nursery children, at the end of July 2024,

School | Capacity. ' Number on roll at July 2024

St. Peter’s C. of E. Primary School, Hindley 315 291

Hindley Green Community Primary School 420 400

HGCP Nursery — part time place 52 36

St. John's C. of E Primary School, Hindley Green 210 189

St. John's C. of E. Primary School, Abram 315 280

University Collegiate School 600 KS3/4 481 KS3-KS4
120 Post 16 62 post 16

Structure, Governance and Management

Constitution

The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable
company’'s memorandum and Anglican articles of association are the primary governing documents of
the academy trust. The Trustees of QUEST are also the directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law. The charitable company operated as The Keys Federation until 11t
September 2020 and from 12" September 2020 operates as QUEST (A Church of England Schools
Trust).

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved, are
included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable
company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they
cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and
liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Trustees’ Indemnities

All schools within the Academy Trust have opted into the Department for Education’s Risk Protection
Arrangement (RPA), an alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise.
RPA cover applies to the central infrastructure of the Trust as well as the individual schools. This
scheme protects Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions
occurring on Trust business and provides cover up to £10,000,000 during any one membership year.

https://www.gov.uk/quidance/academies-risk-protection-arrangement-rpa
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Trustee’s Report
For the Year Ended August 2024

Method of Recruitment and Appointment of Trustees

The Members of the Trust are responsible for the appointment of Trustees, and this is dependent
upon their expertise, experience and skills. The number of Trustees shall be not less than three but
shall not be subject to any maximum, as referanced in the articles of association (45-46 a,b,c) as
follows:

a. No fewer than five Truslees, appointed under Article 50 such that the number of Trustees
appointed under this Arlicle always cutnumbers all other Directors by at least two;

b. Three Truslees appointed by the University Sponsor,

¢. A minimum of 2 Parent Trustees elected or appointed under Articles 53-56 in the event that no
Local Governing Bodies are established under Article 1060(a) or if no provision is made, or is
planned, for at least 2 Parent Local Governors on each established Local Governing Body
pursuant to Article 101A.

Each school has a Local Governing Body in place with 2 Parent representatives.
The Trust may also appoint any co-opted Trustee appointed under Article 58.

The Chief Executive Officer shall not be entitled to be a Trustee/Director (under article 57). No
employee of the Company or of any subsidiary of the Company (as subsidiary is defined in section
1159 Companies Act 2006) shali be a Trustee.

All Trustees are appointed for a term of four years.

Policies and Procedures adopted for the Induction and training of Trustees

Trustees are appointed based on the skilis they will bring to the Board to maintain a robust overview
and governance throughout the Trust. On appointment, Trustees receive information relating to the
Trust, including policies and procedures, an Operaling Regulations and Governance Handbook and
other documents they will need to fulfil their role as Truslees and directors of the Trust. An induction
meeting will be undertaken to provide training on educational, legal and financial matters. It will also
set out the strategy and objectives of the Trust along with the values and vision. New Trustees are
also reguired to adhere {0 a Code of Conduct.

The Trust performs an annua! skills audit of Trustees and appropriale training opportunities are
provided throughout the year hased on any identified skills/knowledge gaps. This is to enable
Trustees to ensure they continue to make an effective contribution and are keeping up to date with
changes in legistation.

Organisational Structure

The Members of the Academy Trust have a distinet and separate role as guardians of the constitution
and governance of the Trust, holding the Trustees to account for the governance of the Trust and
ensuring the purpose of the Trust is being met and its charitable purposes fulfilied.

The Trust Board has overall responsibility and ultimate decision-making authority for the work of the
Academy Trust, including the establishment and maintenance of the schools.
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Trustee’s Report
For the Year Ended August 2024

The Trustees are responsible for setting general policy, the strategic direction and growth of the Trust,
adopting an annual plan and budget, monitoring the Trust and schools by the use of financial
management and other performance information, making appointments to the Trust Executive Team
and approving the Annual Report and Financial Statements.

"""" (_QUEST

QUEST GOVERNANCE CORPORATE STRUCTURE
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Each school has a Local Governing Body whose representatives include Executive
Headteacher/Headteacher/Head of School, Staff, Parents/Carers and Board appointees. The UCS
LGB also contains representatives from the University of Bolton and Employer sponsors. The UCS
currently has an Interim Advisory Board (IAB) in place of the LGB.

The Board of Trustees meet at least half-termly with the first meeting in each academic year being the
business meeting. The Trustee committees for Resources Audit and Risk, Quality Assurance &
Standards and Performance Management and the Local Governing Bodies (LGB) for each school
meet at least once per term. Reports from Trustee Committees and the LGBs are received,
scrutinised and ratified by the Trustees. LGB representatives make regular visits to all schools within
the Trust, including attending LGB meetings and supporting functions and events.

Governance of the Trust is defined in the Articles of Assaciation together with the Master and
Supplemental Funding Agreements with the Department for Education.
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Roles and responsibilities of Trustees, LGB representatives, Trust Executive Team and School Senior

Leaders are clearly defined in the Trust’'s Scheme of Delegation and encourage decision making at all
levels.

The Governance delegation/information flow is outlined as follows:

Governance Information Structure {_J.- = Delegation Flow I = Information Flow

Members — (Minimum 5)
Powers reserved by statute and articles

i !

Board of Trustees — (Minimum 3)
Responsible for Quality of Education, Strategic Direction of the

Organisation and Business Plan Delivery
The CEOQ acts as a conduit between the Board of Trustees, Executive Team and LGB structure

3 [
] & 1 & 1 8
1 LI | T | F | 1
Resources, Audht & Quality Assurance & Performance Remuneration & Pay
Risk Committee Standards Management Committee
(Morirom 3 Trustees) Committee Committee {Minimum 3 Trustees)
(Vi 3 Trustees) My 3 Trustess)
Acts under delegated Acts under delegated
authority of the Acts under delegated Acts under delegated authority of the Board.
Board. authority of the { authority of the
Financial & Audit Board. H Board/CEO Employee contractual
oversight as setin Pupil outcomesand || elements, pay
Terms of Reference, target setting Performance/Appralsal progression &
oversight as setin oversight as set outin Performance
C£0, CFO & Operotions Terms of Reference. the Terms of Management as set
"""""!:g ‘:‘;;'I‘z" ol Reference. out in the Terms of
oy CEQand Reference.
commitiee. o/t ottend didirer
alf meetings of this isappointed by th =4 dor AL
committee. To odvise on the peformance = 8
Marogement of the C€O. Sreingsa/ e
| 11 101 1 1
i R SR

Trust Executive Leadership Team

Senior Leaders with delegated responsibilities,
CEQ, CFO, Education Advisor and Director of SEND

CEO acts under individual delegated authorities from Board and via CEO to

N

Senior Leadership
Acts under delegated authority from the CEO.
Executive Head, Headteachers, Heads of School

Local Governing Body (School Committee)

(8-10 focdieoid

ive (UCS Only).

Staff, elected Porent/Corer x 2, Boord Trustee and

Acts under delegated aulhn;ti!ynfﬂ:e Bo;ld as set out in the Scheme of Delegation.

Consults with Diocess, Church, University of Bolton, Employer Spansers,

Stakeholder Voices - feed into decision making

Partners, L
other Community Groups.

Coffee & Conversation, views sought via website, playground accessibiity, Staff Voice, Student Parfiament and other information

Inltistives.

e ders and
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Trustee’s Report
For the Year Ended August 2024

The Chief Executive Officer is the Accounting Officer. The strategic leadership of the Trust is
delegated to the Trust Executive Team, comprising of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Finance
Officer, Education Advisor and Director of SEND.

Leadership Structure

"""" _ QUEST

QUEST LEADERSHIP STRUCTURE

Strategic leadership of the Trust — Board of
Trustees and Trust Executive Team

| THUSTEXECUTIV

! ‘Z‘z\r

d Strategic leadership of the schools —
l Exec Head/Headteachers/HoS

SENTOR LEADER iiil“;
sasTEATHEn ' Day to day leadership — HoS/School Senior
4 Leadership teams

§1 PEIER'S ST w $T JORNS HESIT ST JORN'S ABAAM m
11

The Senior Leadership Team consists of the Executive Headteacher, Headteachers, Heads of
School, Director of Trust Development, Trust Business Manager and Operations Manager. These
leaders are responsible for the strategic leadership in the schools at an executive level implementing
the policies laid down by the Trustees and reporting back to them. As a group the SLT is responsible
for the authorisation of spending within agreed budgets and the appointment of staff.

\

The SLT delegates day to day responsibilities to the Schools Individual Senior Leadership Team of
each school which consists of the Head, Deputy Headteacher, Assistant Headteachers, Heads of
Department. These leaders are responsible for the day-to-day operation of the schoals, in particular
organising staff (teaching and non-teaching), facilities, resource deployment and pupils.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The pay and remuneration for the Trust Executive Team is set and reviewed by the Trustees’
Renumeration Committee, following recommendation from the CEO Performance Management
committee supported by external professional advice. The Trust benchmarks Executive Salaries
against national comparators bi-annually and ensures it is reflective of the unique position of the
Trust.
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The Executive Head/Headteachers/Heads of School in each school are subject to Teachers' terms &
conditions and the pay and remuneration of these key personnel are set and annually reviewed by the
Trustees’ Pay and Renumerations Committee, following the agreed pay policy and the Individual
School Ranges for each school.

All staff are subject to annual performance management reviews and pay recommendations are
ratified by the Trustees.

Trade union facility time

By law, trade union representatives are entitled to reasconable paid time off from their regular job to
enable them to perform their union dutles and to undertake relevant training. Trade union members,
including representatives, may also ask for unpaid time off to undertake activities. Together, these
arrangements constitute facility time.

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 require QUEST to
collate and publish, on an annual basis, a range of data on the amount and cost of facility time. This
is the completed report for QUEST which confirms the required data for the period 1 April 2023 to 31
March 2024.

Relevant Union Officials

~: Number of employees who were relevant =1 - Full-time equivalent employee number.. -
- ‘union officials during the retevant perfod |} (it e T
Q N/A

Percentage of time spent on facllity time
The percentage of thear worklng hours that re!evant unions officials spent on fac;hty tlme

Percentage of time " Number of employees =+ e
0%
1%-50%
51%-98%
100%

oo |oiC

Percentage of pay bill spent on facllltv tlme
Total cost of facility time - - B £5,456.00
Total pay bitl ot e £8,475,142.33
Percentage « of the total pay b!ll spant on: [ 0.08%
facility time = R

Paid trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities as - 0%
a percentage of total paid facility time hours
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Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

QUEST controls Play Pals Childcare Ltd, a childcare company providing Before & After School
Childcare, Holiday Provision, Nursery Day Care and early years support for the schools within the
Trust. Play Pals Childcare Ltd operates as a private company limited by shares which is 100% owned
by QUEST. The Chief Executive Officer (CEQO) and the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) are Directors of
Play Pals Childcare Ltd on behalf of the QUEST Board.

This dynamic relationship between QUEST and Play Pals ensures that all families can access high
quality childcare if required and our early years provision is seamless from birth to Reception.

Details of transactions between QUEST and Play Pals are explained in note 13 to the accounts.

The University of Bolton is a sponsor of the University Collegiate School, details of transactions
between QUEST and the University of Bolton (Bolton One) are explained in note 38 to the accounts.

Objectives and Activities

Objects and Aims

The Trust's principal object is to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in
particular but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying
on, managing and developing schools which shall offer a broad and balanced curriculum and which:

(i) shall include Church of England schools designated as such which shall be conducted in
accordance with the principles, practices and tenets of the Church of England both generally
and in particular in relation to arranging for religious education and daily acts of worship, and

(ii) may include other schools whether with or without a designated religious character,
including educational institutions which are principally concerned with providing full-time or
part-time education for children of compulsory school age who, by reason of iliness, exclusion
from school or otherwise, may not for any period receive suitable education unless alternative
provision is made for them or 16 to 19 schools offering a curriculum appropriate to the needs
of its students or schools specially organised to make special educational provision for pupils
with Special Educational Needs;

but in relation to each of the schools to recognise and support their individual ethos, whether or not
designated Church of England. The Trust works with the support of the University of Bolton, to
enhance research led and evidence informed education from cradle to career.
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QUEST is a unique Trust of faith and non-faith schools working together collaboratively and
supporting young people from early years to employment.

‘Supporting young people from Early Years to Employment’ shows our steadfast dedication to
preparing young minds for a lifelong quest for knowledge, character, and service.

Our Mission:

At Quest, we are passionate about a future where the power of strong relationships, an unwavering
commitment to our faith-driven values, and a focus on lifelong learning that will propel all children to
achieve well and go on to great things.

We believe that at the heart of our community lies a commitment to our ‘why?’ — the children that we
serve. As a Christian Multi Academy Trust rooted in serving through kindness, we are guided by the
values of respect and compassion. These principles underpin everything we do, creating an
atmosphere where children and staff flourish in a professional, responsible and loyal way. Our
commitment to excellence in education extends beyond the classroom. Through personalised
learning experiences, a diverse curriculum and robust support systems, we cultivate well-rounded
individuals ready to embrace the challenges and opportunities of the future. We are dedicated to
nurturing the potential of every child, recognising that each individual is unique and special. By
fostering a culture of acceptance, belonging, and understanding, we ensure that every child can
thrive, regardless of their background or circumstances. Through partnerships with the wider
community, businesses, churches and local organisations, we equip our students with the skills and
knowledge they need to excel in the ever-evolving landscape of the 21st-century job market.

In setting the strategic plan and our goals we have established 4 Strategic Objectives in terms of
non-negotiables that are at the forefront of our work upon which our quality assurance and review
systems will be tightly focused. Those key areas are:

e Creating a united Trust with strong governance and a common objective of supporting young
people from Early Years to employment, with strong Christian values.

¢ Developing strong accountability systems to improve the outcomes and experiences of our
children, with a curriculum that meets the needs of students and helps them achieve their
career aspirations.

« Nurturing a culture of investment in our pupils, staff and buildings.

e Building long-lasting partnerships to help our Trust grow.

Our Vision

Our vision is to ensure that all our children and young people are prepared to learn for life by
equipping them with the skills, experiences, and a high-quality education, empowering and motivating
them to achieve their full potential now and in the future.

Our mission, ‘Supporting young people from Early Years to Employment' reflects a unique Trust
serving children from 0 - 19.

Preparing young minds for a lifelong quest to knowledge, character and service.

Our Values

Professional

We have a steadfast commitment to displaying integrity, expertise, and collaboration. We encompass
a dedication to ethical conduct, continuous learning, respectful engagement, and accountable,
innovative practices, fostering an environment that prioritises excellence for all stakeholders.

10
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Compassionate

We have a deep empathy and understanding for the diverse needs of students, staff, and the
community. We foster a supportive, inclusive environment where we encourage each other to
succeed.

Responsible
We always demonstrate a commitment to ethical practices. We take ownership of actions, decisions,
and their impact on learning outcomes, fostering a culture of integrity and trust within our community.

Respectful

We believe that being respectful means embracing diversity, fostering an inclusive environment, and
treating all individuals with dignity and care. We are nurturing a culture where differences are
celebrated, communication is courteous, and mutual understanding is valued.

Loyal

We have an unwavering dedication to our mission, values, and the collective goals of students and
staff. We believe in steadfast support, commitment, and advocacy for the wellbeing and success of
everyone we serve,

Kind
Through thoughtful gestures, empathy, and a genuine concern for the wellbeing and growth of others,
we are a kind Trust that promotes a culture of care and understanding.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities
We will deliver this by:

+ Placing students first

+  Creating a collaborative network

+ Sharing Trust wide high standards, expectations and professionalism

« Listening

« Respecting and celebrating our differences, faiths and community hubs
+ Investing in people, coaching and team expertise

«  Working in strong partnerships for the benefit of our young people

11
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The Trust's objectives for the period ending 31 August 2024 are summarised betow:

1. Stronger leadership
a. Communicating the Trust message effectively to ali stakeholders.
b. Creating effective Leadership by developing strong accountability systems to ensure:
i, Leaders are focused on school improvement priorities,
ii. Quality Assurance is embedded.
fii.  Thereis consistency in Leadership and expectations. - Leadership s
contributing to good Teaching and Learning.
iv.  There is a high levsi of visibility for Leaders.
v.  Data is used effectively.
vi. Leaders have the training they need to flourish.
c. Enhancing the effectiveness of Governance at Trust and Board level, to supporl a
cohesive Trust,

d. Ensuring that the Trust has the capacity to grow due lo a clear strategy and central
team strength.

e. Establish a clear and consistent communication slrategy for pupils, parents and the
community.

f. Developing clear and consistent strategies for developing leadership and succession
planning.

g. Building strong external partnerships that help the Trust grow and become stronger.

b} Stronger Teaching and Learning
a. Crealing the conditions to support learners who are disadvantaged and those with
SEND to achieve well.
b. Enhancing the qualily of teaching and assessment at Primary by prioritising:
i. Stronger curriculum sequencing.
ii. An emphasis on meta-cognition and neurodiversily. Stralegies to engage
pupils who are capable of achieving Greater Depth at KS2.

¢. Enhancing the quality of teaching and assessment at Secondary with an emphasis
on:
i. Curriculum scope and ambition. Sequencing of key knowledge and skills,

ii. Consistency of formal and informal assessment processes.

d. Securing a standardised strategy for professional development within each academy
and at Trust level in direct response to needs, with a focus on:
i. Enhancing the quality of teaching and assessment, leading 1o better
outcomes across both phases.

ii. Seouring greater quality and consistency in leadership at all levels.

iii. Investing in the development of all staff across the Trusl by esiablishing clear
pathways for professional development, associale leadership roles,
secondments and NPQs.

iv. Secure increased collaboration on key priorities.

v. Greater opportunities for peer support and review, clarity of self-evaluation,
moderation and benchmarking.

12
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c) Stronger Accountability
a. Ensuring the effective implementation of standardised assessment and moderation.
b. Enhancing the implementation of Quality Assurance procedures by:
i. Introducing best practice models through collaboration with partners.
ii. Having a Trust-wide data strategy that allows trends to be tracked effectively.
c. Aligning practices and procedures in all five schools so that it becomes one Trust,
with ane united common voice.
d. Ensuring that the curriculum is effective across each key stage to ensure:
i. The engagement of all pupils (and specific groups of pupils).
ii. Depth of knowledge, appropriate sequencing, enhanced levels of recall and
memory retention.

d) Stronger Expectations

a. Securing a climate of high expectations amongst all stakeholders.

b. Establishing a cross-phase literacy strategy, with an initial emphasis on the
development of oracy, reading and writing.

¢. Introducing the Quest for Life challenge to allow children the opportunities that they
would not otherwise have.

d. Enhancing approaches to targeted academic intervention to improve outcomes for
pupils.

e. Deliver on the UTCness at UCS.

e) Stronger Infrastructure
a. Developing a clear People Strategy that embraces equality, diversity and inclusion.
b. Developing an effective strategy to invest in our people and our buildings.
¢. Engaging pupils and parents in the development of Trust-wide priorities.
d. Enhancing the effectiveness of provision to support the mental health and wellbeing
of pupils and staff.
e. Securing effective pastoral provision for all pupils (particularly for PP and SEND)
ensuring:
i. Pupils' personal development is maximised through a strong programme of
character education.
ii. Wider opportunities through a planned continuum of authentic experiences
from EYFS to KS5.
ii. A reduction of exclusions, improved attendance and a reduction in PA.
iv. Improved academic outcomes.
v. Increased engagement, resilience and wellbeing.

f) Stronger Achievement
a. Enhancing the standardised model for assessment, target setting and data
management/analysis across the Trust.
b. Ensuring improved outcomes for young people at Primary by prioritising: - Increased
progress from KS1
i. K82 for all pupils' combined outcomes in Reading, Writing and Maths.
ii. Greater Depth (particularly in Writing).
c. Ensuring improved outcomes for young people at Secondary by prioritising:
i. Increased progress across all subjects for pupils.
ii. Reducing variation in outcomes across identified subjects.
d. Securing improved outcomes for all disadvantaged and SEND pupils across all key
stages.
e. Ensuring all pupils gain memorable experiences and achieve significant success
through a planned continuum of extracurricular enrichment activities.
f.  Securing optimum levels of engagement in high-quality independent learning,
particularly in the Sixth Form,

13
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g. Enhancing the effectiveness of praise and reward strategies across each academy,
creating a culture where success is celebrated.

Public Benefit

The Academy Trust's Trustees have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance on
public benefit published by the Charity Commission in exercising their powers or duties. It fully
complies with all statutory guidance and supports wider educational objectives through a strong
community role.

The Trust’s purpose is to advance, for the public benefit, education in the United Kingdom, In
particular but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, by establishing, maintaining,
carrying on, managing and developing schools which shall offer a broad and balanced curriculum.
Our schools directly serve our local communities and provide free education to pupils in the
catchment areas. The Academy Trust also operates private childcare settings and training facilities for
all staff within the group, and for other schools working in partnership with Quest.

The key public benefit delivered by the Trust is the provision of education to its pupils/students.

Strategic Reports

Achievements and Performance

One of the Trust's key strategic objectives is that ‘We are building long-lasting partnerships
to help our Trust grow’. Working with others is crucial to our success.

Our partnership with the University of Bolton and Baker Dearing Trust is a powerful statement of the
trust’'s commitment to innovative partnerships as it plans inspirational new sixth form provision,
including the introduction of T Levels, making ‘levelling up’ a realism.

The trust has maintained a strong focus on the quality of education aligned to the Ofsted Education
Inspection Framework.

With a focus upon curriculum development and the implementation of a new curriculum at primary
level and subject masterclasses delivered throughout the year across all schools, we are drawing
upon the knowledge of experts to discuss and disseminate best practice.

Primary curriculum implementation has been improved significantly by the CUSP curriculum. Schools
have received support and training to embed effective approaches to lesson delivery, whilst coaching
has given leaders the tools to enhance teachers' practice at whole school and individual levels.
Termly reports show that the quality of teaching has risen across primary schools throughout the year.

Our commitment to developing a literacy focus across its schools has been furthered by the
introduction of Bramhall's book club, in memory of an Assistant Head who sadly died during the
pandemic.

Support for pupils with SEND is continuing to be enhanced by the Trust's Director of SEND. A trust-
wide SEND register ensures that there is shared knowledge of patterns of need, as well as checking
that statutory duties are fulfilled at trust and school level.

Success over the past year has not just come with external verification from Ofsted and SIAMs, but in
the improvement in outcomes at all levels. At primary, the Trust has reached National Average at age
related expectations for the first time. At secondary, national average has been achieved for post-16
vocational outcomes and at KS4, pupils achieved a 100% GCSE and BTEC pass rate. Destinations
are strong. The trust uses a KPI dashboard and RAG rating to ensure that progress against key
milestones are effectively monitored

14
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Our Schools take an active part in their local authority’s school improvement networks, are supported
by the University of Bolton in a number of ways to benefit student's education.

Quest is an award-winning Trust, led by a lead Ofsted Inspector. Quest also employs numerous

Specialist Leaders in Education across our schools, our expertise has supported the education of
those schools within our Trust, but also those in our surrounding communities through our strong

commitment to partnership working and civic duty.

Ofsted rate our Schools as:

St. Peter’s Hindley — Good — February 2024

St. John’s Abram — Good — March 2023

St. John'’s Hindley Green — Good — February 2023

HGCP — Good — January 2023

University Collegiate School — Inadequate - December 2022

e o & o o

SIAMs inspection dates:

¢ St Peter's Hindley — March 2024
¢ St John's Hindley Green — June 2024
e St John's Abram — Good January 2017

As an inclusive Trust, we are proud of our pupils and staff achievements, and we continue the journey
from good to great in every aspect of our work. We have committed additional resources this year to
support academic acceleration with additional teaching staff and mentors in all Trust schoals.

The social and economic deprivation in our communities continues to rise and we work in partnership
lo create ambitious, broad and balanced schools, supporting an engaging curriculum and an
approach to student agency throughout. Our coaching culture is building belief to succeed for all.

Other notable achievements across the Trust's academies include:

o University of Bolton ICEE Laboratory School Status: St Peter's Church of England Primary School
Hindley, Hindley Green Community Primary School, University Collegiate School.

e Century Ambassador Status for all primary schools

o St. Peter’s Hindley obtained the Modeshift Stars Silver, Global Neighbours Bronze, School
Games Platinum, Church Awards 1 and 2, International Eco Green Flag, Gold Pearson Teacher
of the Year Award, Good diabetes care in school award, Best Practice Teaching Assistant Award,
Picture News Silver Award.

¢ Hindley Green Community Primary School received the Sportsmark Platinum Award, the Sing Up
Silver Award, Church/Community School Award 1, Archbishop of York Youth Trust Young Leaders
Aware, Wigan and Leigh Primary School of the Year, 2021-22 Primary School of the Year, Arts
Mark Gold.

s St. John’s Church of England Primary, Hindley Green received the Church & School
Partnership Award, Leading Parent Partnership Award, Sportsmark Silver Award, the
International Eco Green Flag Award and Global Neighbours Bronze Award, Best Practice
Teaching Assistants Award, Safeguarding Initiative Award — Safeguarding Alliance.
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« St. John’s Church of England Primary School, Abram received the Church Partnership
Award, Church School Values Award, Eco Schools Green Flag Stalus, Silver Modeshift Award,
Global Neighbours Bronze, Best Practice Teaching Assistants Award, Bronze Scheol Sport
Games Award, Picture News Impact Award, Safeguarding Alliance Award.

+ University Collegiate School recaived SSAT National Award for Progress from Key Stage 4 to Key
Stage 5, University Laboratory School Status, Inclusion Gualily Mark (IQM), IQM Centre of
Excellence. UCS are delighted to have been given recognition from Fischer Family Trust (FFT) for
their hard work on attendance, which is currently sitting 3% above this point last year. Their two
EFT awards are for the top 25% of statistically similar schools in context and the top 25% of
schools Nationatly.

The following quotes from recent external reviews and Ofsted reports from our schools should provide
confidence that ...
‘Pupils show respect to ail.’

‘Leaders and staff have high expectations for pupils' behaviour,’

“Teachers have strong subject knowledge.’

‘Leaders and staff are effective role models and have high expectations for pupils.'

‘a nurturing schoaol where leaders and staff care passionately about the whole community.’
‘Staff comment positively about the impact of the professional development that they receive.’

‘“The trust has an accurate understanding of the school's strengths and areas for development.’
‘Staff appreciate the consideration that the school gives for their well-being.’

‘Proudly support local charitable projects’

‘Pupils behave well in this school. Classrooms are calm and orderly’

‘Pupils learn a highly ambitious curriculum.’

‘There is a strong culture of safeguarding.’

‘School leaders receive strong support from the trustees and the focal governing body.’

‘Parents and carers are rightly proud of the way the school supports puplls with special educational
needs and/or disabilities (SEND).’

‘A deep commitment by staff and leaders to pupils achieving everything they are capable of lies at the
centre.’

‘The school has undergone a transformation over the past two years with substantial support from the
Trust led by the dynamic CEQO*

‘The school has a welcoming, warm atmosphere and this is apparent from the minute you enter the
building.'

‘The staff ‘culture club’ has reflected on the school's values’
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‘Relationships are exceptional and walking through the school | could see the positive ways in which
staff and students interact with each other'

Operational

Strong governance continues to be a key priority at school and trust level. During 2023-24, the trust
undertook a governance review and re-established the role and responsibilities of Local Governing
Bodies. Local Governing Bodies are in place and the scheme of delegation has been revised.

Quest is commitment to sustainability, delivery of low efficiency lighting with LED fittings and has
continued in line with carbon reduction. There is a rolling programme of works underway across
schools.

A new human resources business model has been introduced and will continue to develop over the
next 12 months. The revised approach involves the Trust HR professional working proactively with
school leaders to develop and embed our Wellbeing and HR strategy.

Essential work has continued to maintain cyber security. The trust has achieved Cyber Essentials
accreditation, giving assurance that it is well equipped to deal with cyber-attacks, but there is no room
for complacency and a cycle of monitoring and resulting action continues.

Key Performance Indicators

The Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) monitors the Academy Trust via a number of
statistical returns. The Trust completed an annual self-assessment of its financial management and
governance in April 2024, The Trustees’ Resources Audit and Risk Committee monitor percentage
spends and emphasis is placed on monitoring staffing and educational resources spending.
Benchmarking against similar academies is performed annually and a benchmarking report is
presented to Trustees.

The Trustees approved the budget for the period 15! September 2023 to 315! August 2024 and staffing
costs for the 12 months period 90.8% of all restricted fund income which is in line with Trustees'
expectations.

As funding is based on pupil numbers, this is a key financial performance indicator. The table below
shows a steady increase across the Trust.

Academic Year Pupil Numbers
2023/24 1703
2022/23 1631
2021/22 1514
2020/21 1405
2019/20 1383
2018/19 1202

Educationally, the trust is focused on a set of key performance indicators. In 2024/25 these
are:
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Targeted Targeted
KPiE S jc Objective KPi Metric End of Year 1 End of Year 2
Aug-24 Aug-25
Outcome of national % 65%
1 SATsrewlts at K52
AWM combined {orintine with national) for 3% above national)
1ing 73%
Outcomes of Reading.
2 Writing and Maths Mriting T1% Above national averages for each subject
{individuath
' . Maths 73%
Progress 8 €3 ]
3 To ensure puplls Attalnment B 40 45
achleve highly and 2 A
are preparedforthe [$S14+EM Lh 5%
nextstagein -
K54 5+ E/M 4G¥%. 45%
education. EN
4 Average Aleve Grade C B
Average Applied Grade Distinction Distinction
93% {secondary)
5 Attendance of children 52% (Sixth form} Above national averages for each phase
Proportion of schools
6 graded Good or better Good ot better 100% Good ot better
by OFSTED
Place akey emphasls
on excellent teaching 0%
4 of readingactossour |41 comeof Phonics i
Screening Check Yl
schoolsasa
foundation for {or in line with natlonal sverages)
fchildrentoexcel.
s Outcome of Phonics Y2 87% 90%
Screening Check Y2 for In line with natlonal averages)
Place an emphasison
3 laninclusive m?d";"; 110 (25¥ cfcohon) 110 (15% of cohort)
education
Outcomeof national
SATs results at K2 2% 13%
10 RWMcombined gap for
:’;’n“‘""d‘:;::'""'“ {or Disadvantaged sttainment 6% better than
Childrenin bl aged ational
poups children pelonsy
achieve highly and
close the gap to other| o, 1 come of national SON %
childrennationally. |catyresyits st KS2
11 AWM combined gap for
children with SEND to
children without SEND {or SEND attainment 7% better than national
Empl ;i ORNFITT 0% NEEY
suongtmatererand | 0 eing
i
10 community 10 strong NEET 10 employer partrers offering sup port to ol spectalint 25 employer partners offering support to ol
Engagement s AoniE areas specialist areas
Impactingon
supporting Young i schostsinvetved One chatity pactner pec whoa! One charity and one employer partner per school
11 |PeoplefromBarly  |hegvilyinther ANl Cof schools ergaging hat termly with their lacal Al schools are activelyInvolved In their
Yearsto Employment | community church community community and contributing to local landscape
7] The Trust Is financially [Reducing the inyear deficit (400,000 In year deficit £300,000
strong Lo support deficit o3 a1 { £00,000 Reserves 3t £500,000 - final year of deficit
Investmentin 8 danars 15 donors
bulldings, staff and i
e pup“."p' Inceessedontions £500.000 £1million
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Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the
Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the
Statement of Accounting Policies.

Financial Review

Most of the Trust and Academy income is obtained from the DfE via the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA) in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes.
The grants received from the ESFA in the twelve months ended 31! August 2024 and the associated
expenditure are shown as restricted funds In the Statement of Financial Activities.

The Trust also received grants from the ESFA and other organisations. In accordance with the
Charity Commission’s document ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice 2015, such grants are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as
restricted income in the restricted general fund and fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed asset fund
balance Is reduced by depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the assets concerned.

During the twelve months ended 31t August 2024, total income excluding capital funding, was
£12,522,295, which includes £1,089,378 relating to PlayPals (2023: £10,949,450, which includes
£955,951 relating to PlayPals.) with a deficit at 31 August 2024 of £327,515 (2023: -£740,438)
before actuarial gains on the pension valuation. The trust maintains adequate reserves to fund
ambitious plans of future improvements and development of the organisation, its curriculum resource
and its infrastructure.

Unrestricted income in the twelve months ended 315 August 2024 amounted to £1,370,644 (2023:
£1,275,334)

At 313t August 2024 the net book value of fixed assets amounted to £17,947,180 (2023: £15,715,533)
and movements in fixed assets are shown in note 12 to the financial statements. The cost of fixed
asset additions, excluding donated assets, in the twelve months to 315t August 2024 amounted to
£170,119 (2023: £141,753).

This funding has been used to:

« Employ additional support across schools to deliver rapid, intensive and targeted intervention
programmes (reading, phonics, maths, English)

« Employ additional teaching staff to support with small group teaching

+ Purchase and implement a new curriculum across the primary sector

¢ Resources to support new curriculum

s Implementation of TLR structure

¢ Recruitment and development of the central trust team in order to effectively support schools
within the trust

¢ Estiates investments

+ Provide additional small group skill sessions/tutoring sessions after school

e Provide professional development opportunities for all staff

e Conduct standardised assessments to identify gaps in learning

19



)

QUEST

Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)
Trustee’s Report
For the Year Ended August 2024

« Readiness 1o learn intervention programme for most vulnerable children
« One io one tuition for selected individuals

« Intervention programmes for pupils with SEMH challanges

+« Masterclasses in exam prep

« Tutoring for GSCE students in smalt groups

« Easter School for individualised and intensive support

Key financial policies adopted or reviewed during the period include the Scheme of Financial
Administration, Investment, Reserves Policy, Whistleblowing, Emergency Plans and Business
Continuity, Charging and Remissions, Business Expenses, Debt Management and Fixed Assets.

The Academy Trust has recegnised its share of the Local Govemnment Pension Scheme (LGPS)
assets and liabilities in accordance wilh FRS102 and a deficit has been recognised at 31! August
2024. This results in reducing reserves shown in the total funds of the Trust. However, it should he
noted that this does not present the Trust with any current liquidity problem.

The Board of Directors receive monthly management accounts to review and in addition the Board’s
Resources Committee annually receive and analyse longer term financial models to plan and
organise resources most effectively to fulfil the strategic aims of the Trust.

Reserves Policy

Reserves form part of the cash bajance for each school. The total cash balance across all schools is
managed centrally and invested prudently in interest earning bank accounts. The Trustees review the
level of reserves annually. This review encompasses the nature of income and expenditure streams,
the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves. The Trust's current level of
free reserves (total reserves less the amounts held in fixed asset reserve and restricted pension fund
reserve) is £1,114,156 {2023; £1,401,891). The Trustees will keep this level of reserves under review
and aim to maintain the reserves level whilst in keeping with the principal object of the Trust.

The level of free reserves for PlayPals is £434,295 (2023: £422,139).

The Frustees have declded to adopt a prudent approach to reserves lo safeguard against unforeseen
circumstances, future financia!l challenges, capital improvements or developments, late ESFA
payments, emergencies and other catastrophes. This is sound commercial practice designed to
safeguard the Trust's business activities and quality of education at all of the schools in the group.

The net liability of the Trust in the Local Government Pension Scheme {(LGPS) amounts to £153,000
{2023: £385,000.) The Trust recognises his a significant llability which is set aut in the financial
statements. The Trust does not have an obligation to settle this liability immediately and there are no
indications that it will crystallise in the foreseeable fulure. Parliament has agreed, at the request of
the Secretary of Siate for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of academy closure,
outstanding local government pension scheme liabilities would be met by the DIE. The guarantee
came into force on 18 July 2013.

Total funds for the academy trust as at 315t August 2024, including the restricted pension fund deficit
of £153,000 are £18,773,644 {2023: £16,467,132) which is made up of restricted funds £nil (2023:
£39,779), fixed asset funds £17,812,487 (2023: £15,410,461) and unrestricted funds £1,114,157
{(2023: £1,401,892).

Total funds for PlayPals as at 315t August 2024 are £434,295 (2023: £422,139}, which is recognised
within unrestricted funds.
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Investment Policy

At QUEST we are diligent with the public money we are entrusted with. We will carefully invest any
money that is not required to cover anticipated expenditure and take steps to manage the risk
associated with financial invesiments,

The Trust's investment objectives are;

+ o achieve besl financial return available whilst ensuring the security of deposits takes precedence
over revenue maximisation.

+ anly invest funds surplus to operational need based on all financial commiiments being met without
the Academy bank account{s) becoming overdrawn.

+ by complying with this policy, all investment decisions should be exercised with care and skill and
consequanlly be in the best inferest of the Academy, commanding broad public support.

Decisions on how much to invest and how long to invest for, will be based on operational
requirements, demonstrated by cash flow forecasts, The cash flow forecasts will take account of the
annual budget and spending plans approved by the Board and updated on a monthly basis.

A sufficient balance will be held in the current account so that the Academy's financlal commitments
can always be met without the bank account going overdrawn. The size of the bafance will be
delermined by a forecast of future need and kept under review.

During the twelve months to 318 August 2024, the trust had one investment with Lloyds Bank PLC
with £600,000 being held in a short-term notice account.

Cash balances are safeguarded by investing them in interest bearing current accounts with sound
commercial banks {currently Lloyds Bank PLC).

Principal Risks and Uncertaintles

The principal risks to the Trust have been assessed and documented using the Trust’s risk register
which is comprehensively reviewed on a termly basis, Procedures have been established to mitigate
those risks.

Systems and procedures have been established to mitigate the risks each academy faces and the
individual academy risk registers are regularly reviewed and updated.

Our academies monitor the effect of pupil numbers on a regular basis, and plan for any anticipated
falling rolis accordingly.

The UCS expect the Year 7 intake in September 2024 will be 100% of the pupil admission number,
which is a great achievement for the UCS as an extended UTC. This ensures that the projected
budget fits within anticipated ranges.

The uncertainties relating lo budget reforms, increasing employment salary costs and premises costs
with regards to building repairs and maintenance are all contributing to cost pressure in future periods
which increases the importance of maintaining robust levels of revenue reserves,

The Trust recognises the exposure to credit risk from banks where the Trust's own cash is deposited.

This credit risk is low due to all cash and investments being with banks that have been assigned a
high credit rating.
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The main risks which could occur are;

the loss of reputation resulting from a drop in standards and academic performance at the
schools,

failure to safeguard our pupils

falling pupil numbers,

budgstary pressures brought aboul by reduced public sector education spending and funding
formula changes;

erosion of reserves to balance budgets in the short to medium term;

significart Rability of the LGPS deficit;

pressures on growth which exceeds Trust capacity;

lack of succession planning within Trust governance and leadership; and

business interruption due to significant property related incidents.

Key controls in place to mitigate these risks are:

in-depth, regular data analysis through the Quality Assurance Programme, including external
reviews

Annual school improvement plans at all schools of the Trust

Robust self-evaluation procedures and careful monitoring of learning and teaching, linked to
rigorous performance management

An efficient and skilled central team structure

An organisational structure with clearly defined roles, responsibilities and authorisation levels
Documented terms of reference for the committees of the Trust and the Local Governing
Bodies

Financial planning, budgeting and regular monitoring reports highlighting key areas of
financial risk

Formal written and published policies for employees

Vetting procedures as required by legislation for the protection of vulnerable children

Robust due diligence procedures in place for growth of the Trust, new coniracts and
commissions

Building and development plans for all siles

Regular Premises & Grounds inspections and Health & Safety reports ensuring the Trust and
its schoals are statute compliant

Major Incident Policies and Plans

Review cycle for Governance and regular training with expertise from the system to ensure
leadership strategy is robust

Building educationat expertise and capacity across the Trust.

Marketing for all schools, especially the primary schools due to low hirth rates and the UCS
Sixth Form, including the new T Level offer

Agreement from Parliament, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a
guarantee that, in the event of academy closure, outstanding local government pension
scheme liabilities would be met by the DfE. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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The Academy Trust does not use any external fundraisers. Fundraising activities took place during
2023/24 by each school's Parents’ & Friends’ Association and by the schools in support of their
nominated charities.

All fundraising undertaken during the year was monitored by school staff through attendance at
fundraising meetings and events and through the income/expenditure reporting.

During the year there were no complaints about any fundraising activity and the Trust and schools are
mindful of protecting vulnerable people and members of the public. All donations for fundraising
events are completely voluntary, without undue pressure or persistent approaches.

The Trustees have a duly to ensure:

e all fundraising is undertaken in the best interests of the Trust and its schools,

¢ resources are managed responsibly - this includes protecting and safeguarding the reputation
of the Trust and

s they act with reasonable care and skKill.

Streamlined Energy and' Carbon Reporting

As the Trust has not consumed more than 40,000 kWh of energy in this reporting period, it qualifies
as a low energy user under these regulations and is not required to report on its emissions, energy
consumption or energy efficiency activities.

Plans for Future Periods

The board undertook an external review of governance in the summer term 2024, to ensure its best
practice and alignment for the next phase of Trust evolution and growth. Trustees also held a Trust
strategy day, which was facilitated by Forum Strategy.

The key finding was that:

“The governance of the trust has improved significantly since the last external review of governance,
particularly at trust board level. Relationships are stable and productive, and the trust board is now
focusing on delivering its three areas of board purpose”

QUEST will seek to grow as a multi-academy trust and continue to work with communities across the

geographical clusters to manage sponsor-led academies and open free schools. Within these schools
the trust will work to ensure the high performance of its students and that the schools meet the needs
of those communities.

The overall performance in this reporting period was encouraging, including a 10% increase in KS2
outcomes and as a consequence has reinforced the Trust's long-term strategy and the creation of the
next phase of development.

In reviewing the existing strategy, it is clear that stabilily is key. Whilst significant improvement has
been made at trust board level, further work is required to ensure that this is sustained. The
compaosition of the trust board should be considered to separate the layers of governance, allow long-
standing trustees to retire, and ensure that successors are being developed to fill key roles and to
provide sustained challenge to the trust.
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At a laocal level, primary governance is not yet wholly effective, and this should be an area of focus.
The trust should agree a meaningful role for LGBs and ensure that they are trained and developed to
perform it.

Upon reviewing the strategic vision, the board is now in a position to explore growth through a hub
model of expansion within the region, in partnership with the Church of England and the Regional
Director.

QUEST will continue to work in partnership with its community and seeks to welcome strong schools
to the Trust as well as supporting schools to transform education through its sponsor schools option.

Working closely with the University of Bolton and a focus on Employer Sponsors the Trust has
reinvigorate its academic specialisms and life skills to secure student's pathways to the workplace
and higher education. This is an area which the UCS wishes to develop further over the next phase,

Schools work in partnership with families to meet the specific needs of their communities and they
and the Trust listen well to those we serve through. Trustees, Executive and Senior Leaders and
Local Governing Bodies work together in partnership to support schools, evaluate impact and help to
shape our future together.

Funds held as Custodian Trustee on Behalf of Others

The Academy Trust did not act as a custodian trustee on behalf of others during the current or
previous period.

In so far as the Trustees are aware:

¢ There is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware;

e The Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The audit business Xeinadin Audit Limited has been appointed as the company's auditor. The audit
report has been issued by Xeinadin Audit Limited.

The Trustees’ report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of
Trustees, as the company directors, on 26 November 2024 and signed on the Board’s behalf by:

Dr. C. Pailing MBE
Chair of Trustees
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Scope of Responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Quest (A Church of
England Schools Trust) has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise.
However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business abjectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in the DfE's Governance
Handbook and competency framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as
accounting officer, for ensuring financial controls conform to the requirements of both propriety and
good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to
it in the funding agreement between QUEST and the Secretary of State for Education. The Chief
Executive Officer is also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses
or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and
in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees formally met six times during
the twelve months ended 31t August 2024, Governance meetings have been held in person and
virtually and all documents referred to at the meetings were uploaded to Governor Hub at least 7 days
in advance of the meetings. Attendance during the period at meetings of the Board of Trustees was
as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Professor. G. Ashton 6 6
Mrs. K. Gore 5 6
Dr. A. Roberts 5 6
Mrs. J. Smith 6 6
Mrs. L. Worthington 5 6
Dr. C. Pailing (Chair) MBE 6 6
Mr. S. Derringer 4 6
Mr. 1. Ismail 3 6
Professaor. G. Baker 4 6
Mr. C. Lomas 3 3
Mrs. S. Darbyshire 3 3

During the 2023/24 academic year, the board reviewed its strategic approach and in line with best
practice recommendations engaged in an external governance review facilitated by an NGA expert
reviewer,

The board has assessed itself against the CST self evaluation tool and is assessing its strengths and
areas for improved as:

CURRENT SELF EVALUATION
Strategle Expert Ethical High Quality, E i:tn'nt at Rl\:’lﬁfmd Finance and Public Benefit and
Governance Leadership In¢lusive Education P Scale Wellbelng Operations Civic Duty
1. Stralegy and Cullure 8. Conception of 1. Culture of 9. Working Culture 13. Gollaboration and
Quality Improvement Accountabliity
& Incluaion 8. Knowledge buliding
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The board uses a range of dala to measure its effectiveness and is also using the DFE's MAT
capacity framework to measure itsell against strong trusts,

The Board of Trustees approve their annual workplan in their Strategy meeting, which is their first
meeting of each academic year. The workplan discharges their responsibilities in line with slatutory
and regulatory requirements and is in line with ils scheme of delegation. Trustee meelings are
provided with comprehensive yet focused reports and performance information to allow them to
undertake their responsibilities, providing effective challenge, scrutiny and accountability for the Trust.

The trust uses GovernorHub to record and maintain a register of interests and other statutory
declarations. This information is shared with the trust finance team to enable any potential condlict of
interests. Trustees are reminded within every meeting to ensure the regisler is kept up to date and to
declare any additional conflict of interests.

Trustees thanked for their service as they left their term of office as a Trustes:
Professor D. Hopkins

Quest welcomed the following Trustee appointments to the board:
Mr. C. Lomas and Mrs. S. Darbyshire

Conflicts of Interest

The Trust maintains an up-to-date and compleie register of inlerests. Members / Trustees / LGB
Representatives / senior staff members keep an updated record of any conflicts of interest in the
Academy's register of interesls, which is maintained by the Trust Operations Manager and Clerk to
the Board of Trustees.

The Board of Trustees of QUEST will carry out continuous monitoring of its activities and members to
ensure that any conflicts of interest are identified and mitigated as soon as possible,

Members / Trusiees / LGB Representatives have a standard agenda item at the beginning of each
meeling to declare any actual or potential conflicts of interest,

A Memberf Trustees/LGB Representativelsenior staff member declares any interest which he / she
has in an item to be discussed, at the earliest possible opportunity and before any discussion of the
item itself.

If a Member/ Trustes/LGB Representative/senior staff member is uncertain whether or not he / she is
conflicted, he / she the issue will be declared with the other Members/ Trustees/LGB Representatives.

if a Member/Trusiee/LGB Representalive/senior stafl member is aware of an undeclared conflict of
interest affecting another committee member, then he / she this is notified to the other
Members/Trustee/LGB Representative or the Chair,

Removing conflicts of interest

Members/Trustees/LGB Representatives/senior staff members must consider the conflict of interest
50 that any potential effect on decision-making is eliminated.

Members/ Trustees /LGB Representatives/senior staff members must follow any legal or governing
document requirements on how a conflict of interest must be handled, but may, in serious cases,
decide that removing the conflict of interest itself is the mosl effeclive way of preventing it from
affecting their decision-making. Serious conflicts of interest include, but are not limited to, those
which:
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s Are so acute and extensive that the Members/ Trustees /LGB Representatives/ senior staff
members are unable to make their decisions in the best interest of the Academy Trust and its
pupils or could be seen to be unable to do so.

* Are present in significant or high-risk decisions of the members.

¢ Mean that effective decision-making is regularly undermined or cannot be managed in
accordance with the required or best practice approach.

* Are associated with inappropriate Member/ Trustees /LGB Representative/ senior staff
member benefit.

Withdrawing from decision-making

Where there is a proposed financial transaction between a Member / Trustee / LGB Representative /
senior staff member and the Academy Trust, or any transition of arrangement involving member
benefit:

¢ The benefit must be authorised in advance by the Board. If there is no Board meeting
planned within the time frame of authorisation being required, then the Chair of the Board and
one other Trustee can be contacted to authorise the benefit. If the person affected is the
Chair of the Board, then the Vice - Chair of the Board plus one other Trustee must authorise
the benefit.

e The Board expects the affected member to be absent from any part of any meeting where the
issue is discussed or decided.

¢ The affected individual should not vote or be counted in deciding whether a meeting is
quorate.

Where there is a conflict of loyalty and the affected member does not stand to gain any benefit and
there are no specific governing document or legal provisions about how the conflict of loyalty should
be handed, the affected member should declare the interest.
The remainder of the Board must then decide what level of participation, if any, is acceptable on the
part of the conflicted member. The options might include, but are not limited to, deciding whether the
conflicted member:

e Having registered and fully declared the interest, can otherwise participate in the decision

¢ Can slay in the meetings where the decision is discussed and made, but not participate.

¢ Should withdraw from the decision-making process in the way described above.

In deciding which course of action to take regarding a conflict of interest, Members/ Trustee / LGB
Representatives:

+ Must always make decisions only in the best interest of the Academy Trust and its pupils.

« Should always protect the reputation of the Academy Trust and be aware of the impression
that their actions and decisions may have on those outside the Academy Trust.

s Should always be able to demonstrate that they have made decisions in the best interest of
the Academy Trust and its pupils, and independently of any competing interest.
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« Should require the withdrawal of the affected member from any decisicns where lhe
member's other intereslt is relevant to a high risk or controversial decision or could, or be seen
to, significantly affect the member's decision making at the Academy Trust.

+ Can aliow a member to parlicipate where the existence of his / her other interest poses a low
risk to decision-making in the Academy Trust's interest or is likely to have only an insignificant
bearing on his / her approach to an issue.

« Should be aware that the presence of a conflicted member can affect trust between
members, could inhibit free discussion, and might influence decision-making in some way.

Members / Trustees / LGB Representatives can, before their discussion, ask a member who is
withdrawing, to provide any information necessary to help make the decision in the best interests of
the Academy Trust and its pupils.

Members / Trustees / LGB Representatives should record in the minutes, details of any and all
discussions on potential conflicts of interests and the decisions made.

Meetings

The board and its committees meet regularly to discharge their respensibilities and ensure robust
governance and effective management arrangements. Board mestings take place at least six times a
year.

Governance Reviews

As a malter of best practice trustees carry out a self-assessment annually. During the 2023/24
academic year, the hoard reviewed its strategic approach and in line with best practice
recommendations engaged in an external governance review facilitaled by an NGA expert reviewer. A
number of recommendations were made which were considered by the board and resulted in siralegic
decisions concerning governance,

The Trustees and DfE commissioned independent external reviews of governance, as part of a wider
programme of seff-assessment and improvement. It is clear that the Trustees need to continue
developing a stronger level of challenge to leaders and to scrutinise pupil cutcomes more effectively.

Attendance:

The Committees of the Board of Trustees have met on a regular basis throughout the year and the
business conducted by these cammittees is reported to the Trust Board. Attendance at meetings in
the twelve months ended 31t August 2024 were as follows:

Resources Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for all matters relating to Finance, Audit
{including governance, risk management, internal control and value for money), Personnel,
Facilities and Health & Safety. lts purpose is to assist the decision making of the Board, by
enabling more detailed consideration to be given to the best means of the Board of Trustees’
responsibility to ensure business resources, including proper planning, monitoring and
prebity, regulatory compliance, financial probity and manage risk. The appointed Internal
Auditors are Cofie.
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Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Dr. A. Roberts (Chair)
Professor G. Baker
Mr. 1. Ismail

Mr. C. Lomas

N
NS

Marc Doyle (CEQ) and Tonianne Hewitt (CFO) were in attendance at these meetings. Debra Finch
(Operations Manager) also attends meelings as required.

Quality Assurance & Standards Committee is responsible for agreeing targets for pupil
achievement and receives regular reports on progress towards these targets. Its purpose is to
assist the decision making of the Board, by enabling more detailed consideration to be given
to the best means of the Board of Trustees’ responsibility to ensure high standards in the
quality of teaching and learning within Trust schools.

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Professor. G. Ashton
Mrs. S. Darbyshire
Mr. S. Derringer

Mrs. L. Worthington
Mrs. J. Smith

GabhOINOD
[ NN R S e

Executive Heads / Headteachers were in attendance at these meetings.

Membership of the Local Governing Bodies has been reviewed during the year and a proactive
approach to recruiting new members with the required skills set has been adopted.

Review of Value for Mone

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy
Trust delivers good value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that
value for money refers to educational and wider societal outcomes, as well as estates safety and
management, achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considered how the Academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good
value for money during the academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for
money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data or by using a framework where
appropriate.

The accounting officer for the Academy Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year
by:

s  ensuring pupil attainment remains a priority across the academy trust and is a focus within each

school's improvement plan;

effective use of Pupil Premium ensuring pupils of differing needs achieve just as well as others;

effective use of National Tutoring Programme;

effective use of 16-19 tuition grant;

ensuring an emphasis on leadership and personal development;

collaboration between schools to facilitate consistency and best practice allowing educational

professionals to improve self-evaluation, triangulate strategy, analyse data, maximise resource

deployment and to be each other’s critical friend;

s reviewing staffing structures at individual school and trust level to ensure they are fit for purpose
and can adapt and respond to support the successful completion of objectives within each
Schaool's Improvement Plan and Trust Strategy;

s ensuring Professional Development for teachers and support staff are effective;
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s ensuring all members, Trusteses, LGB representalives and members of the Trust Senior
Leadership Team complete and annual register of pecuniary interests form and the opportunity to
declare any pecuniary interest is provided at all trustee and LGB representative meetings;

»  ensuring the financial performance of the Trust is robust and the surpluses are held in Hine with
the Trust's Reserves policy;

» ensuring the Trust's Resources Audit and Risk Commiftee and Full Board receives monthly
budget monitoring reports and Trustees are given the opportunity to question, challenge and
discuss spending proposals in order to achieve value for money;

+  ensuring the academy trust explores every opportunity maximise income generation through hire
of facilities and pursuing grants and funding bids, including funding for trust minibuses and
improvements to grounds;

« arranging group contracts for supplies of services to the Trusl, where appropriate, resulting in
measurable cost savings;
ensuring a Trust Risk Register is in place and reviewed on a termly basis;
ensuring each school, and the Trust Head Office, has a Major Incident policy and plan in place
that includes business continuity procedures along with an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy;

«  additional income generation from Play Pals Chitdcare Ltd, the Trust's traded service, enabled
enhancement of the schools slrategic priorities. In addition, Play Pals is expanding ils provision
during 2024/25 due to parental demand.

The Trust has established robust guidance within the Trust's Scheme of Financial Administration. The
Trust has continued to maintain procedures to ensure segregalion of duties, uniformity and
consistency across all schools within the Trust, The Trust benefils from the provision of suitably
qualified finance staff including the Chief Financial Officer. The Chief Financial Officer and their team
hold regular meetings with all schools within the Trust,

The Internal Auditors for the Trust carried out a series of internal audits during 2023-24. The internal
audit reports highlighted the strong practices in place at the schools as well as a number of low-risk
recommendations. Any recommendations from the internal audits have been actioned at both school
level and across the Trust.

The Chief Financial Officer reporis back the financial position at a school and Trust level to the
Accounting Officer, on a monthly basis. In addition, a formal monthly report is prepared far the
trustees.

The Trust ensures a continual focus on best value for money and ¢learly understands the importance
of the efficient and effeclive use of its resources. Our schools and Trust promote fair competition
through quotations and tenders, in accordance with its financial regulations, to ensure that goods and
sarvices are secured in the most economic and effective way. Where possible, the Trust has secured
single supplier contracts for areas where a single supplier is appropriate for our schools i.e.
insurance, payroll, ICT software licences and internal audit. This has considerably reduced the cost of
this provision to schools. Service level agreements and contracts are kept under review to continually
look at best value and efficiency savings. There is a greater emphasis on centrally procured contracts
to ensure full compliance and best value for money is achieved.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only pravide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectivenass. The system of internal control is based on
an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust
policias, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact
should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of
internal control has been in place in QUEST for the period 15t September 2023 to 315 August 2024
and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.
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Capacity to Handle Risk
The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together
with the operation, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those

risks,

The Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the Academy Trust's significant risks that have been in place for the period 1¢
September 2023 to 31% August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

The Risk and Control Framework,

The Academy Trust’s system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of
delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

« comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic
financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trusteses;

« regular reviews by the Resources Audit and Risk Committee of reports which indicale

financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and

expenditure programmes;

selting targets lo measure financial and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

delegation of authorily and segregation of duties;

identification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustees has decided to buy-in an internal audit service from Cofie Ltd. This option has
been chosen because it complies with the requirements of the FRC Ethical Standards for auditors.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financiat matters and other matters and
performing a range of checks on the Academy trust’s financial and other systems.

In particutar, the checks carried out in the current period included;

Risk Management Policy and Procedures

« Ensuring that the trust is compliant with seclion 2.38-2.42 of the ESFA Academy Handbook

» A review of the risk registers for the trust

» A chack of mitigating actions confained within the risk registers to ensure that actions
proposed within the risk register are being carried out.
A review of the trust's risk management policy
A review of minutes from lrustee meelings to ensure risk is being considered at the
appropriate levels

Trust/Schools internal control framework In relation to confiicts of interest, related party
transactions and the recording of statutory information with companies house
s The trust's policies in relation fo related parly transactions and confficts of interest.
¢ The lrust's register of business interests
s A review of any relaled parly transactions 1o ensure they have been dealt with in accordance
with section 5.41-5.43 of the ESFA Acadamy Trust Handbook
« A review of fransactions within the purchase ledger to ensure that no undisclosed related
parly transactions have laken place
» A veview of Information on Companies House Website to ensure that any interests listed on
companles house website are contained within the lrust’s own register of business/pecuniary
interests
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Review payroll processing and performance reviews
« sample of gross payments from payroll repotis fo personnel records
o review a payroll files fo ensure the trust is complying with their internal controls
+ Review a payroll journal fo ensure that they are being posted correctly
s Ensure the outcomes of staff appralsals had been approved by lrustess and that annual
salary statements have been issued

* Review the appraisal and capability policy a sample appraisal lo ensure that due process has
taken place

On a termly basis the auditor reports to the Trust Board, through the Resource Audit and Risk
Committee, on the operation of systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees
financial responsibilittes and prepares an annual summary report to the commitlee outlining the areas
reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and
assess year on year progress.

Cofie Ltd has delivered the schedule of work as planned and provided termly reports to the Board of
Trustees. Any recommendation arising as a result of the internal audit work has been actioned
throughout the year.

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive officer has a responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness
of the system of internal control. During the year in question, the review has been informed by:

» The work of the internal auditor;

« The work of the external auditor;

« The financial management and governance self-assessment process and the school resource
management self-assessment tool;

» The work of the executive and senior leaders within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for
the development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the resull of their review of the system
of internal control by the Resources Audit and Risk Committee and a plan to address minor
weaknesses and ensure continuous impravement of the system is in place.

Conclusion

Based on the advice of the Resource, Audit and Risk Committee and the Accounting Officer, the
board of Trustees is of the opinion thal the academy frust has an adequate and effective framework
for governance, risk management and control.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 26 November 2024 and signed on its
behaif by:

............................................................

Dr. C. Pailing MBE Mr. M. Doyle
Chair of Trustees Chief Executive Officer and Accounting Officer
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As Accounting Officer of Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust), | have considered my
responsibility to notify the Academy Trust Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of
all funding including for estates safety and management, under the funding agreement between the
academy irust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration, | have had due
regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2023, including responsibilities for
estates safety and management.

| confirm that |, and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees, are able to identify any material irregular or
improper use of funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and
conditions of funding under the Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust
Handbook 2023.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been

discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this staiement, these will be
notified to the Board of Trustees and the ESFA.

Mr. M, Doyle
Accounting Officer

26 November 2024
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The Trustees (who are also the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law}
are responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the
Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under
company law, the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
Observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2023 to 2024,
Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

» Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the charitable company will continue in business.

The Truslees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company
applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriely and of
goad financiai management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the
ESFA/DIE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the charitable company's website. Legisiation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 26 November 2024 and signed on its
behalf by:

..............................

Dr. C. Pailing MBE
Chair of Trustees
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust) (the
‘Academy') and its subsidiaries (the 'Group") for the year ended 31 August 2024, which comprise the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities, Consolidated Balance Sheet, Balance sheet
Caonsolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland'.

In our opinion the financial statements:

« give a true and fair view of the state of the Group and parent academy trust's affairs at 31 August
2024 and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and
expenditure, for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice;

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008; and

« have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2018 and Academies Accounts
Direction 2023-2024.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK}) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Elhical Standard, and we have fulfilfed our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating fo
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy's
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the original
financial statements were authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information (covers the Reference and administrative details, the Trustees' report and
the Governance statement)

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other Information comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon,
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In conneclion with our audit of the financial statemenis, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on ihe work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the Trustees' report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

« the Trustees' report been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requiremnents.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent Academy and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the
Trustees' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report te you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
+ certain disclosures of Trustees remuneration specified by law are not made; or

< we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained mare fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities [set out on page 34], the
Trustees are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financlal statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Group and the
parent Academy's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to
liquidate the Group or the parent Academy or {0 cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor Responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or errar, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion., Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considerad material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, cutlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect
of irregularities, including fraud, The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecling
irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

« the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team colleclively had the appropriate
competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations;

« we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the trust through discussions with directors and
other management, and from our commercial knowledge and experience of the academies sector,;

« we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect
on the financial statements or the operations of the trust, including the Companies Act 2006,
taxation legislation and data protection, anti-bribery, employment, environmental, and health and
safety legislation;

» we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making
enquiries of management and inspecting legal correspondence; and

* identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team
remained alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the trust's financial statements to material misstatement, including
obtaining an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

» making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their
knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and

+ considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:
« performed analytical procedures to identify any unusuat ar unexpected relationships;
« tested journal entries to identify unusual fransactions;

« assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates were
indicative of potential bias; and

« investigated the rationate behind significant or unusual transaclions

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed
procedures which included, but were not limited to:
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» agreeing financial statement disclosures fo underlying supporting documentation,
* reading the minutes of meetings of those charges with governance

+ enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and

* reviewing correspondence with HMRC, and the trust's legal advisors

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council’s website
at; www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Other matters
We would note that the year ended 31 August 2024 is the first year of consolidation, and
consequently the comparative figures of the subsidiaries are unaudited.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy's Members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Academy's Members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Academy and its Members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Simon Leitch-Devlin {Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Xeinadin Audit Limited, Statutory Auditor

Riverside House

Kings Reach Business Park
Yew Street

Stockport

Cheshire

SK4 2HD
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In accerdance with the terms of our engagement lefter dated 2 May 2023 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies
Accounts Direction 2023-2024, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about
whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by Quest (A Church of England Schools
Trust) during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been applied to the purposes
identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust) and the ESFA in accordance
with the terms of our engagement ietter. Our work has been undertaken so that we may state to
Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust) and the ESFA those matters we are required fo state in a
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anycene other than Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust) and the ESFA, for our
work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)'s accounting
officer and the reporting accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the reguirements of Quest (A Church of England
Schools Trust)'s funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 17 December
2018 and the Academy Trust Handbook extant from 1 September 2023, for ensuring that expenditure
disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s
ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement
letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2023-2024. We repott to you
whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in afl material
respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year from 1 September 2023 to 31
August 2024 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform {o the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors
and Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA, We performed a limited assurance
engagement as defined in our engagement |etter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obfain
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence {o express a
negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement
and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we
do not express a positive opinion.

Ouwr engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant {o the regularity and
propriety of the academy trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

+  We have confirmed that the aclivities conform to the trust's framework of authorities. As identified
by review of minutes, management accounts, discussion with the accounting officer and other key
management personnel.

+  We have carried out an analytical review as part of the consideration of whether general activities
of the trust are within the trust's framework of authorities.

+ We have considered the evidence supporting the accounting officer's statement on regularity,
propriety and compliance and have evaluated the general control environment of the trust and
extended the procedures required for financial statements to include regularity.
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+ We have assessed and tested a sample of the specific control activities over regularity of a
particular activity. In performing sample testing of expenditure, we have considered whether the
activity is permissible within the trust's framework of authorities. We confirm that each item tested
has been appropriately autharised in accordance with the trust’s delegated authorities and that the
internal delegations have been approved by the Trust Board and conform to the limils set by the
Department for Education.

+ Formal representations have been obtained from the governing body and the accounting officer
acknowledging their responsibiliies including disclosing all non-compliance with laws and
regulations specific to the authorising framework, access to accounting records, provision of
information and exptanations, and other matters where direct evidence is not available,

+ In performing sample testing of expenditure, we have reviewed against specific terms of grant
funding within the funding agreement. We have reviewed the list of suppliers and have considered
whether supplies are from related parties and have reviewed minutes for evidence of declaration of
inferest, and whether or not there was involvement in the decision to order from this supplier.

+ We have performed sample festing of other income and tested whether activities are permitted
within the trust's charitable objects.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come fo our attention which suggests that in all material
respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year from 1 September 2023 to
31 August 2024 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Reporting Accountant

Xeinadin Audit Ltd
Riverside House

Kings Reach Business Park
Yew Street

Stockport

SK4 2HD

Y12/ 2024
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Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August

Note

Income and endowments from:

Donations and capital
grants 2

Charitable aclivities:

Funding for the
Academy trust's
educational operations 3

Other trading activities 4
Investments 5

Total

Expenditure on:
Raising funds 6

Charitable activities:

Academy trust
educational operatiohs 7

Total

Net
income/{expenditure)

Transfers between
funds

Other recognised
gains and losses

Actuarial (losses)/
gains on defined benefit
pension schemes 28

Net movement in
(deficit)/funds

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds/{deficit)
brought forward at 1
September 2023

Total funds/{deficit)
carried forward at 31

2024
(including Income and Expenditure Account)
Restricted
Restricted Restricted Fixed

Unrestricted General Pension Asset 2023/24

Funds Funds Funds Funds Total

£ £ £ £ £

22,199 91,611 - 2,834,027 2,947,837
- 11,060,040 - - 11,060,040
1,328,875 - - - 1,328,875
19,570 - - - 19,570
1,370,644 11,151,651 - 2,834,027 15,356,322
863,851 - - - 863,851
- 11,941,806 (10,000) 463,996 12,395,802
863,851 11,941,808 (10,000) 463,096 13,259,653
506,793 {790,155) 10,000 2,370,031 2,096,669
(782,371) 750,376 - 31,995 -
- - 222,000 - 222,000
(275,578) {(39,779) 232,000 2,402,026 2,318,669
1,824,130 39,779 (385,000) 15,410,461 16,889,370
1,548,552 - {153,000} 17,812,487 19,208,039

August 2024
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Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August

2023

(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Restricted Restricted

Unrestricted General Pension
Funds Funds Funds
Note £ £ £

Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital

Restricted
Fixed
Asset 2022123
Funds Total
£ £

grants 2 14,588 109,406 - 137,401 261,395
Charitable acfivities:

Funding for the

Academy frust's

educational operations 3 - 9,564,710 - - 9,564,710

Other frading activities 4 1,256,214 - - - 1,256,214

Investmenis 5 4,532 - - - 4,632
Total 1,275,334 9,674,116 - 137,401 11,086,851

Expenditure on:

Raising funds 6 766,822 - - - 766,822

Charitable activities:

Academy frust

educational operations 7 - 10,808,582 336,000 651,295 11,793,877

Total 766,822 10,806,582 336,000 651,285 12,560,699

Net

income/{expenditure) 508,512 (1,132,466) (336,000) (513,894) (1,473,848)
Transfers between

funds (1,035,744) 958,389 - 77,354 {N
Other recognised

gains and losses

Actuarial {losses) /

gains on defined benefit

pension schemes 28 - - 646,000 - 646,000
Net movementin

(deficit)ffunds (527,232) (174,077} 310,000 (436,540) (827,849)

Recongiliation of funds

Total funds/{deficit)
brought forward at 1
September 2022 2,351,362 213,856 {695,000)

156,847,001 17,717,219

Total funds/(deficit)
carried forward at 31
August 2023 1,824,130 39,779 {385,000}

15,410,461 16,889,370
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Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

(Registration number: 09306360)

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2024

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilities

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one vear

Net current assels

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions for liabllities

Net assets excluding pension liabiiity

Defined benefit pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Funds of the Academy:

Restricted funds
Restricted general fund
Restricted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general fund

Total funds
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Note

12

14

28

17
17
17

17

2024 2023
£ £
17,947,180 15,715,533
351,308 292,717
1,513,688 1,656,841
1,864,096 1,049,558
(447 419) (386,597)
1,417,577 1,562,961
19,364,757 17,278,494
(1,744) (3,488)
(1,974) (636)
19,361,039 17,274,370
(153,000) (385,000)
19,208,039 16,889,370
- 39,779
17,812,487 15,410,461
(153,000) (385,000)
17,659,487 15,065,240
1,548,552 1,824,130
19,208,039 16,889,370




Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

(Registration number: 09306360)
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2024 {continued)

The financial statements on pages 41 to 82 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue
on 26 November 2024 and signed on their behalf by:

.........................................

Dr. C. Pailing MBE
Chairperson
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Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

(Registration number: 09306360)
Balance Sheet at 31 August 2024

2024 2023
Note £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12 17,557,949 15,326,412
Investments i3 1 1
17,557,850 15,326,413
Current assets
Debtors 14 282,046 243,371
Cash at bank and in hand 1,490,349 1,614,610
1,772,395 1,857,981
Liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year {401,957) (328,775)
Net current assels 1,370,438 1,529,206
Total assets less current liabilities 18,928,388 16,855,619
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 16 (1,744) (3,488)
Net assets excluding pension liability 18,926,644 16,852,131
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 28 (153,000) {385,000)
Total net assets 18,773,644 16,467,131
Funds of the Academy:
Restricted funds
Restricted general fund 17 . 39,779
Restricted fixed asset fund 17 17,812,487 15,410,461
Pension reserve 17 {153,000) {385,000)
17,659,487 15,065,240
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general fund 17 1,114,157 1,401,891
Total funds 18,773,644 16,467,131

Page 45




Quest {A Church of England Schools Trust)

(Registration number: 09306360)
Balance Sheet at 31 August 2024 (continued)

The financial statements on pages 41 to 82 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue
on 26 November 2024 and signed on their behalf by:

Dr. C. Pailing MBE
Chairperson
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Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 August 2024

2024 2023
Note £ £

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by/{(used in) operating activities 21 2,245,447 (554,755)
Cash flows from investing activities 23 (2,386,856) (15,211)
Cash flows from financing activities 22 (1,744) (1,744)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year (143,153) {571,710)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 1,656,841 2,228,551
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 24 1,513,688 1,656,841
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Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

1 Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncettainty is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financiai Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Praclice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
{Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2023-2024 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainiies related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the abilily of
the company to continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable fulure and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust’s ability to
continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
prepating the financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the company and its
sole subsidiary undertaking. These are adjusted, where appropriate, to conform to group accounting
policies. As a consolidated group profit and loss account is published, a separate profit and loss
account for the parent company is omitted from the group financial statements by virlue of section 408
of the Companies Act 20086.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount can be measuread reliably.

Granis

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of entilement of recsipt its
recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income. Where entitlement occurs before
income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the year for which it is receivable and any unspent
amount is reflected as a balance in the restricted general fund.

Capital grants are recognised when receivable and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which

they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflecled in the balance in the restricted
fixed asset fund.
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Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
(continued)

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no
performance-related conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations

Donations are recagnised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the
extent the academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, heing the expected proceeds from sale less the
expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and
‘Income from other trading activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income
from other trading activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as 'Income from other trading aclivities'.
Where it is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not
recognised in the financial statements until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income
from other trading activities'.

Donated fixed assels

Where the donated good is a fixed assef, it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to
measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised
as income from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset
category and depreciated over the useful economic jife in accordance with the academy trust's
accounting policies,

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, itis probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be reguired in seftlement and the
amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of
each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are alfocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable fo a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes
and inciudes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.
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Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
(continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including suppott costs and
costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with
the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the private sector, they are included in
the Batance Shest at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life. The related
grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Aclivities and carried
forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on such assets is charged to the restricted fixed asset
fund in the Statement of Financial Activities so as to reduce the fund over the useful economic life of
the related asset on a basis consistent with the Academy Trust's depreciation policy.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to
write off the cost of each asset over its expected useful lives, per the table below.

Asset class Depreciation method and rate
Leasehold land 0.8% straight line

Buildings 2% straight line

Fixtures and fittings 20% straight line

Computer equipment 33.33% straight line

Tenants Improvements 2%

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost, Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought inte use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buiidings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shorifalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Investments

The Academy's shareholding in the wholly owned subsidiary, is included in the balance sheet at the
cost of the share capital owned less any impairment. There is no readily available market value and
the cost of valuation exceeds the benefit derived.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settiement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy
trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for
the goods or services it must provide.
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Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
{continued)

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result
of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settie the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability, The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Taxation
The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meeis the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes,

Accordingly, the academy trust is polentiafly exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Part 11, Chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1892, o the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
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Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
(continued)

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Pension benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme ('TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit
schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contribuiions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially fevel percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit
credit method, TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
betwean employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the periad to which they relate,

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalenl to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net income/(expendilure} are
the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefi{ changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
henefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference hetween the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immaediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees,

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a spacific purpose,

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for
Education.

Restricted pension funds comprise all income, cosls and actuarial valuations associated with the
Local Government pension scheme (LGPS).

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expeclations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances,
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Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
' {continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued}

Critical accounting esfimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resuits. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilitles within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptifons. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost {income) for pensions include the discount rate, Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 28, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full
actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions
liability at 31 August 2024, Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach
and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Financial Instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets
and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - frade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 14. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amountis due tc the charity’s whally owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabiiities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15, Taxation and social securily are not included in the
financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as
the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than
cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to charity's wholly owned subsidiary are held at
face value less any impairment.

Subsidiary undertaking

The financial statements include the results of Playpals Childcare Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary.
Further details of the subsidiary and its resulis are set out in note 13. Profits generated by the
subsidiary will be passed to the Academy via gift aid.
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Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
(continued)

2 Donations and capital grants

Educational trips
and visits

Capital granis
Other donations

Donated fixed
assets

Restricted Restricted

Unrestricted General Fixed Asset 2023124 2022/23
Funds Funds Funds Total Total

£ £ £ £ £

- 81,784 - 81,784 93,934

- - 298,860 298,860 122,011

22,199 9,827 - 32,026 30,080

- - 2,535,167 2,635,167 15,390

22,199 91,611 2,834,027 2,947 837 261,395
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Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
(continued)

3 Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

Educational operations

DfE/ESFA revenue grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Other DfE/ESFA grants

Pupil premium

UIFSM

Suppiementary grant
Mainstream additional funding
Post opening start up grant
16-19 core funding

Teachers pay grant
Teachers pension grant

Other government
grants

Local authority grants

Total grants

Resfricted
General 2023/24 2022/23
Funds Total Total
£ £ £
8,584,716 8,584,716 7,084,549
281,442 281,442 242,008
611,198 611,198 471,751
160,315 160,315 121,318
- - 183,955
283,087 283,087 117,298
- - 60,000
522,848 522,848 378,867
149,390 149,380 1,141
100,405 100,405 16,224
10,693,401 10,693,401 8,677,114
366,630 366,639 887,599
11,060,040 11,080,040 9,564,710
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Quest {A Church of England Schools Trust)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

4 Other trading activities

(continued)

Unrestricted 2(23/24 2022123
Funds Total Total
£ £ £
Hire of facilities 8,464 8,464 8,605
Catering income 134,772 134,772 128,877
School shop sales 21,454 21,454 26,798
Staff insurance reimbursements 22,508 22,506 81,337
Other income 52,301 52,301 54,646
Income from ancifiary trading activities 1,089,378 1,089,378 955,951
1,328,875 1,328,875 1,256,214
5 Investment income
Unrestricted 2023/24 2022123
Funds Total Total
£ £ £
Short term deposits 174 174 207
Oth Inc-Investment income 19,396 19,396 4,325
19,570 19,570 4,532
6 Expenditure
Non Pay Expenditure
2023/24 2022123
Staff costs Premises  Other costs Total Total
£ £ £ £ £
Expenditure on
raising funds
Direct costs 740,248 - 47,041 787,289 696,841
Allccated support
costs - 47,858 28,704 76,562 69,981
Academy trust's
educational
operations
Direct costs 8,108,507 410,891 733,178 9,252 576 8,393,324
Allocated support
costs 1,285,042 818,525 1,039,659 3,143,226 3,400,553
10,133,797 1,277,274 1,848 582 13,259,653 12,560,699
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Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

6 Expenditure {(continued}

(continued)

Net incomel/{expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating leases - other leases
Fees payable to auditor - audit
- other audit services
Depreciation

7 Charitable activities

Direct costs - educational operations
Support costs - educational aperations

Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs
Depreciation

Technology costs
Premises costs

tegal costs - other

Other support costs
Governance costs

Total support costs

2023/24 2022123
£ £
13,136 10,144
14,175 13,500
8,485 6,170
473,639 660,520

Total Total

2024 2023

£ £
9,252,576 8,393,324
3,143,226 3,400,553
12,395,802 11,793,877
Educational 2023724 2022723
operations Total Total
£ £ £

1,285,042 1,285,042 1,701,496
53,105 53,1056 89,689
224,000 224,000 288,932
765,420 765,420 683,370
- - 18,751
763,031 763,031 580,600
52,628 52,628 37,715
3,143,226 3,143,226 3,400,553
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Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

(continued)
8 Staff
Staff costs and employee benefits
2023/24 2022/23
£ £
Staff costs during the year were:
Wages and salaries 6,897,500 6,354,357
Social security costs 642,742 596,329
Pension costs 1,398,252 1,619,399
8,938,494 8,570,085
Supply costs 1,126,448 1,001,725
Staff restructuring costs 68,855 17,495
10,133,797 9,589,305
2023124 2022/23
£ £
Staff restructuring costs comptise:
Redundancy payments 7.745 -
Severance payments 61,110 17,495
68,855 17,495

Severance payments

The academy trust paid 4 severance paymaents in the year disclosed in the following bands:

2023/24 2022/23
£ £
0 - £25,000 4 3

Special staff severance payments
Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutary/non-contractual severance paymenls totalling
£61,110 (2023: £17,495). Individually, the payments were:

Non-contractual payments £20,000
Non-contractual payments £22,000
Non-contractual payments £4,110

Non-contractual payments £15,000
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Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
{continued)

8 Staff (continued)

Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:

2023724 2022123
No No
Teachers 76 80
Administration and suppart 159 137
Management 18 11
253 238

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2024 2023
No No
£60,001 - £70,000 3 2
£70,001 - £80,000 2 3
£90,001 - £100,000 - 1
£100,001 - £110,000 1 -
£130,001 - £140,000 1 -

£180,001 - £190,000

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior
management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of key management personnel benefits
{(including employer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by
key management personnel for their services to the academy trust was £828,609 (2023: £1,020,853).
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Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)
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9 Central services

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:
School improvement services

» School Improvement

» Governance

* HR/Payroll

* Finance

* Leadership Support

« Estates Management

* Procurement Management

The academy trust charges for these services on the following basis:
flat percentage of General Annual Grant (GAG) income (5%), plus an amount for pooled resources.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2024 2023
£ £
St Peter's Church of England Primary School 207,894 167,559
Hindley Green Community Primary School 275,179 258,858
St John's Church of England Primary School, Hindley Green 139,130 113,572
St John's Church of England Primary School, Abram 203,628 165,855
University Collegiate 335,444 308,717

1,161,275 1,014,561

10 Related party transactions - trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from employment
with the Academy Trust. The principal and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of
employment.

The value of trustees’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

Mrs S Bruton (Chief Executive and Accounting Officer) - left office 23.05.23 :

Remuneration: £Nil (2023 - £180,000 - £185,000)
Employer’s pension contributions: £Nil (2023 - £25,000 - £30,000)

Mr M Doyle (CEO & Accounting Officer) :

Remuneration: £130,000 - £135,000 (2023 -)
Employer’s pension contributions: £30,000 - £35,000 (2023 - )
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10 Related party transactions - trustees' remuneration and expenses (continued)

During the year ended 31 August 2024 and the prior year there were no travel and subsistence
expenses reimbursed or paid directly to trustees.

Other related party transactions involving the trustees are set out in note 29.

11 Trustees' and officers' insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA),
an alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
Academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees
and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

12 Tangible fixed assets

Group
Freehold Leasehold Furniture
land and land and and Computer Tenants 2023/24
buildings buildings equipment hardwaramnprovements Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 September
2023 429,529 16,879,952 1,710,990 823,499 150,704 19,994,674
Additions - 2,644,545 15,243 45,498 - 2,705,286
At 31 August
2024 429,529 19,524,497 1,726,233 868,997 150,704 22,699,960
Depreciation
At 1 September
2023 42,956 1,926,156 1,556,457 735,005 18,567 4,279,141
Charge for the
year 7,732 325,792 69,656 67,445 3,014 473,639
At 31 August
2024 50,688 2,251,948 1,626,113 802,450 21,581 4,752,780
Net book value
At 31 August
2024 378,841 17,272,549 100,120 66,547 129,123 17,947,180
At 31 August
2023 386,573 14,953,796 154,533 88,494 132,137 15,715,533
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12 Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Cost

At 1 September
2023

Additions
At 31 August 2024

Depreciation

At 1 September
2023

Charge for the
year

At 31 August 2024
Net book value

At 31 August 2024
At 31 August 2023

Leasehold Furniture
land and and Computer Tenants 2023/24
buildings equipment hardware improvements Total
£ £ £ £ £
16,879,952 1,710,990 820,032 150,704 19,561,678
2,644,545 8,661 42,326 - 2,695,532
19,524,497 1,719,651 862,358 150,704 22,257,210
1,926,156 1,556,457 734,086 18,567 4,235,266
325,792 69,351 65,838 3,014 463,995
2,251,948 1,625,808 799,924 21,581 4,699,261
17,272,549 93,843 62,434 129,123 17,557,949
14,953,796 154,533 85,946 132,137 15,326,412
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13 Investments

The Academy owns 100% of the Ordinary shares of Play Pals Childcare Limited, a company
incorporated in United Kingdom. The principal activity of the company is the provision of childcare
services. Turnover for the year ended 31 August 2024 was £1,090,520, expenditure was £878,364
and the profit/(loss) for the year was £212,156. The assets of the company at 31 August 2024 were
£481,833, liabilities were £45,464 and capital and reserves were £434,395.
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14 Debtors
Group Academy
2024 2023 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
Trade debtors 74,396 47,098 9,450 3,032
VAT recoverable 49,891 69,136 49,891 69,136
Other debtors 566 566 566 566
Prepayments 86,843 87,212 82,527 81,932
Accrued income 139,612 88,705 139,612 88,705
351,308 292,717 282,046 243,371
15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Group Academy
2024 2023 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
Salix loan 1,744 1,744 1,744 1,744
Trade creditors 21,557 688 15,473 688
Other taxation and social
security 4,982 15,932 - -
Other creditors 14,203 11,265 16,993 14,477
Accruals 211,384 185,098 176,611 142,370
Deferred income 191,136 169,496 191,136 169,496
Pension scheme creditor 2,413 2,374 - -
447,419 386,597 401,957 328,775
2024 2023
£ £
Deferred income
Deferred income at 1 September 2023 169,496 164,050
Resources deferred in the period 191,136 169,496
Amounts released from previous periods (169,496) (164,050)
Deferred income at 31 August 2024 191,136 169,496

At the balance sheet date the Academy Trust was holding funds received in advance for Special
Educational Needs, Rates Relief and Infant Free School Meals received in advance of 24/25.

Page 64



Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
(continued)

16 Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

Group Academy
2024 2023 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
Other creditors 1,744 3,488 1,744 3,488

The Academy Trust received Salix Funding in relation to Capital projects. Salix funding is an interest
free loan approved by the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) repayble by equal
instalments over eight years. Repayments falling due within one year are included in note 15.
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17 Funds

Restricted funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Other DfE/ESFA grants
Other restricted income

Pupil premium

Other DfE/ ESFA grants
UIFSM

Teachers pay grant
Teachers pension grant

Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion
DfE/ESFA Capital grants
Capital expenditure from GAG
Private donations

Transfer of UTC

Donated assets

Pension reserve funds
Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted general funds
Unrestricted funds

Total unrestricted funds

Total endowment funds

Total funds

Balance at Gains, Balance
1 losses at 31
September Incoming Resources and August
2023 resources expended transfers 2024

£ £ £ £ £

39,779 9,107,564 (9,897,719) 750,376 -

- 281,442 (281,442) - -

- 458,250 (458,250) - -

- 611,198 (611,198) - -

- 283,087 (283,087) - -

- 160,315 (160,315) - -

- 149,390 (149,390) - -

- 100,405 (100,405) - -

6,546,036 - (193,256) - 6,352,780
658,284 298,860 (28,472) - 928,672
482,602 - (14,248) 31,995 500,349
174,181 - (5,142) - 169,039
7,501,433 - (221,435) - 7,279,998
47,925 2,535,167 (1,443) - 2,581,649
(385,000) - 10,000 222,000 (153,000)
15,065,240 13,985,678 (12,395,802) 1,004,371 17,659,487
1,824,130 1,370,644 (863,851) (782,371) 1,548,552
1,824,130 1,370,644 (863,851) (782,371) 1,548,552
16,889,370 15,356,322 (13,259,653) 222,000 19,208,039
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17 Funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Restricted funds

Restricted general funds

General Annual Grant (GAG)

Other DfE/ESFA grants
Other restricted income
Pupil premium

UIFSM

Restricted fixed asset funds

Transfer on conversion
DfE/ESFA Capital grants

Capital expenditure from GAG

Private donations
Transfer of UTC
Donated assets

Pension reserve funds
Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted general funds
Unrestricted funds

Total unrestricted funds

Total endowment funds

Total funds

Balance at Gains,

1 losses Balance at
September Incoming Resources and 31 August
2022 resources expended transfers 2023
£ £ £ £ £

213,856 7,463,416  (8,595,882) 958,389 39,779

- 620,626 (620,626) - -

- 997,005 (997,005) - -

- 471,751 (471,751) - -

- 121,318 (121,318) - -
6,822,735 - (276,699) - 6,546,036
564,069 122,011 (27,796) - 658,284
500,548 - (20,300) 2,354 482,602
106,544 75,000 (7,363) - 174,181
7,818,516 - (317,083) - 7,501,433
34,589 15,390 (2,054) - 47,925
(695,000) - (336,000) 646,000 (385,000)
15,365,857 9,886,517 (11,793,877) 1,606,743 15,065,240
2,351,362 1,275,334 (766,822) (1,035,744) 1,824,130
2,351,362 1,275,334 (766,822) (1,035,744) 1,824,130
17,717,219 11,161,851 (12,560,699) 570,999 16,889,370

Page 67



Quest (A Church of England Schools Trust)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
(continued)

17 Funds (continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant must be used for the normal running expenses of an Academy and any
amounts carried forward at the end of the financial year must be in accordance with the terms of the
Funding Agreement.

Other DfE/ESFA grants comprise additional funding received for the furtherance of education, which
must be used in accordance with the specific terms of each grant.

Other government grants include LA funding for Special Education Needs and growth funding.

Other restricted funds include contributions received for educational visits and non public donations
and the related expenditure.

The pension reserve represents the value of the Academy's share of the deficit in the Local
Government Pension Scheme. The deficit at 1 September 2023 was £385,000, the total deficit has
reduced to £153,000 at 31 August 2024.

Restricted fixed assets funds are those funds relating to the long term assets of the Academy used in
delivering the objects of the Academy.

Unrestricted funds are funds which the Trustees may use in the pursuance of the Academy's
objectives and are expendable at the discretion of the Trustees.
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17 Funds (continued)

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Hindley Green
Community Primary
School

St. John's Church of
England Primary
School, Abram

St. Peter's Church
of England Primary
School

St. John's Church of
England Primary
School, Hindley
Green

University Collegiate
Central services

Academy Trust

Teaching
and
Educational Other Other Costs
Support Support Educational (excluding Total
Staff Costs Staff Costs Supplies Depreciation) 2024
£ £ £ £ £
1,542,684 242,336 136,356 392,817 2,314,193
1,033,238 123,760 92,620 209,873 1,459,491
1,143,423 141,234 87,025 230,582 1,602,264
920,746 112,816 78,683 191,046 1,303,291
2,953,450 331,014 248,096 518,777 4,051,337
514,964 355,880 31,855 309,673 1,212,372
8,108,505 1,307,040 674,635 1,852,768 11,942,948
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Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Teaching
and
educational Other
support support Other costs
staff staff Educational (excluding Total
costs costs supplies depreciation) 2023
£ £ £ £ £

Hindley Green

Community Primary

School 1,318,279 276,000 114,110 579,958 2,288,347
St. John's Church of

England Primary School,

Abram 1,040,807 173,058 68,189 378,467 1,660,521
St. Peter's Church of
England Primary School 960,854 137,925 63,845 347,446 1,510,070

St. John's Church of
England Primary School,

Hindley Green 705,114 173,706 52,402 266,793 1,198,015
University Collegiate 2,561,186 310,129 204,883 806,603 3,882,801
Central services 659,844 328,677 23,137 371,961 1,383,619
Academy Trust 7,246,084 1,399,495 526,566 2,751,228 11,923,373

St. John's Church of England Primary School, Hindley Green is carrying a net deficit of £21,792 on
these funds because:

Staffing, implementation of new CUSP curriculum and repairs and maintenance as agreed.
The trust is taking the following action to return the academy to surplus:
Review of staffing requirements and resources.

University Collegiate is carrying a net deficit of £1,711 on these funds because:
Agreed spend on School Improvement due to ofsted judgement.

The trust is taking the following action to return the academy to surplus:
Review of staffing requirements and resources.
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17 Funds (continued)

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 were allocated as follows:

2024 2023
£ £
St. John's Church of England Primary School, Abram 10,595 144,064
Hindley Green Community Primary School 539,343 766,193
St. John's Church of England Primary School, Hindley Green (21,792) 261,088
St. Peter's Church of England Primary School 323,292 439,504
University Collegiate (1,711) (237,793)
Playpals Childcare Limited 434,295 422,139
Central services 264,530 68,714
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 1,548,552 1,863,909
Restricted fixed asset fund 17,812,487 15,410,461
Pension reserve (153,000) (385,000)
Total 19,208,039 16,889,370
18 Analysis of net assets between funds
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset
Funds Funds Funds Total Funds
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets 389,120 - 15,326,413 15,715,533
Current assets 1,493,469 372,041 84,048 1,949,558
Current liabilities (57,823) (328,774) - (386,597)
Creditors over 1 year - (3,488) - (3,488)
Provisions (636) - - (636)
Pension scheme liability - (385,000) - (385,000)
Total net assets 1,824,130 (345,221) 15,410,461 16,889,370
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18 Analysis of net assets between funds (continued)
Fund balances at 31 August 2024 are represented by:

Restricted Restricted

Unrestricted General Fixed Asset
Funds Funds Funds  Total Funds
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets 389,231 - 17,557,949 17,947,180
Current assets 1,206,757 403,701 254,538 1,864,996
Current liabilities (45,462) (401,957) - (447,419)
Creditors over 1 year - (1,744) - (1,744)
Provisions (1,974) - - (1,974)
Pension scheme liability - (153,000) - (153,000)
Total net assets 1,548,552 (153,000) 17,812,487 19,208,039

19 Capital commitments

2024
£
Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements 79,694

20 Long-term commitments, including operating leases

Operating leases

At 31 August 2024 the total of the academy trust's future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases was:
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20 Long-term commitments, including operating leases (continued)

2024 2023

£ £

Amounts due within one year 13,486 5,023
Amounts due between one and five years 35,348 10,047
48,834 15,070

21 Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating

activities
2023/24 2022/23
£ £

Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the
statement of financial activities) 2,096,669 (1,473,849)
Depreciation 473,639 660,521
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (298,860) (122,011)
Interest receivable (19,570) (4,532)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable (22,000) 302,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 12,000 34,000
Increase in debtors (57,253) (44,861)
Increase in creditors 60,822 93,977
Net cash provided by/(used in) Operating Activities 2,245 447 (554,755)
22 Cash flows from financing activities

2024 2023

£ £
Repayments of borrowing (1,744) (1,744)
Net cash used in financing activities (1,744) (1,744)
23 Cash flows from investing activities
2023/24 2022/23
£ £

Dividends, interest and rents from investments 19,570 4,532
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (2,705,286) (141,754)
Capital funding received from sponsors and others 298,860 122,011
Net cash used in investing activities (2,386,856) (15,211)
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24 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2024 2023

£ £

Cash in hand and at bank 1,513,688 1,656,841
1,513,688 1,656,841

Total cash and cash equivalents
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25 Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash

Loans falling due within one year
Loans falling due after more than one year

Total
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At 1

September At 31
2023 Cash flows August 2024
£ £ £
1,656,841 (124,261) 1,532,580
(1,744) - (1,744)
(3,488) 1,744 (1,744)
(5,232) 1,744 (3,488)

1,651,609 (122,517) 1,529,092
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26 Contingent liabilities

During the life of the funding agreement, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any
asset for which a government capital grant was received, the academy is required either to re-invest
the proceeds or to repay to the Secretary of State for Education the same proportion of the proceeds
of the sale or disposal as equates with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of
State.

Upon termination of the funding agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the
Academy serving notice, the academy shall repay to the Secretary of State sums determined by
reference to:-

a) the value at that time of the academy's site and premises and other assets held for the purpose of
the academy and

b) the extent to which expenditure incurred in providing those assets was met by payments by the
Secretary of State under the funding agreement.

27 Member liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable
company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they
cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and
liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

28 Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by . Both are multi-employer
defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS
to the period ended 31 March 2022.

Contributions amounting to £(2,413) (2023 - £(2,374)) were payable to the schemes at 31 August and
are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed
by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in
academies All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.
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28 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other
pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are
recognised and managed appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions.

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of
benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31
March 2020. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 October
2023, with the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above
the rate of CPI. The key elements of the valuation outcome are:

« Employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy). This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no
change in member benefits is needed.

» Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits)
for service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estimated future
contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million,
giving a notional past service deficit of £39,800 million

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024. The next valuation result is due to
be implemented from 1 April 2028.

The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £996,102 (2023: £909,713).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website
(https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme.
The academy trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan.
Accordingly, the academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a
defined contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out above the information available on the
scheme.
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28 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Local government pension scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2024 was £536,000 (2023 -
£484,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £405,000 (2023 - £369,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £131,000 (2023 - £115,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are
per cent (Quest) and 17.2 per cent (UCS) for employers and are banded from to 12.5 per cent for

employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in
the event of an academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities
would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and
on 21 July 2022, the Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a

parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2024
%
Rate of increase in salaries 3.45
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.65
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.00

2023
%
3.80

3.00
5.20

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in the mortality

rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2024 2023
Retiring today
Males retiring today 19.60 19.60
Females retiring today 23.10 23.20
Retiring in 20 years
Males retiring in 20 years 20.20 20.30
Females retiring in 20 years 24.30 24.30
Sensitivity analysis

2024 2023

£ £

Discount rate -0.1% 137,000 124,000
Pension rate +0.1% 133,000 114,000
Mortality assumption +1 year increase 235,000 208,000
Salary rate +0.1% 6,000 12,000

The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme were:
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28 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Equities

Government bonds

Property

Cash and other liquid assets

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £486,000 (2023 - (£58,000)).

Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities

Current service cost
Interest income
Interest cost

Total amount recognized in the SOFA

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

At start of period

Current service cost

Interest cost

Employee contributions
Actuarial (gain)/loss

Losses or gains on curtailments
Benefits paid

FRS102 Accounts Adjustment

At 31 August
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2024 2023
£ £
4,083,000 3,246,000
888,000 650,000
473,000 371,000
473,000 370,000
5,917,000 4,637,000
2023/24 2022/23
£ £
22,000 (302,000)
270,000 192,000
(282,000) (226,000)
10,000 (336,000)
2023/24 2022/23
£ £
5,022,000 4,695,000
383,000 671,000
282,000 226,000
131,000 115,000
41,000 (734,000)
90,000 99,000
(58,000) (50,000)
- 99,000
5,891,000 5,121,000
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28 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Changes in the fair value of academy's share of scheme assets:

2023/24 2022/23

£ £

At start of period 4,637,000 4,000,000
Interest income 270,000 192,000
Actuarial gain/(loss) 353,000 11,000
Employer contributions 405,000 369,000
Employee contributions 131,000 115,000
Benefits paid (58,000) (50,000)
At 31 August 5,738,000 4,637,000

At the 31st August 2024, the defined benefit pension scheme for UCS has an excess of assets over
liabilities of £179,000. The academy trust has not received any formal notification of recovery of
surplus, either by way of reduced contributions or refunds. Therefore, this does not constitute an asset
under FRS102 and a nil blaance is included in the balance sheet in respect of this school.

29 Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees/directors being
drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with
organisations in which the trustees have an interest. The following related party transactions took
place in the financial period.
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29 Related party transactions (continued)

Expenditure related party transactions
During the year the academy made the following related party transactions:

University of Bolton

(An organisation in which Baroness Helen Newlove (Member) is Pro Vice Chancellor of University of
Bolton, Andrew Roberts (Trustee) is Governor and Professor Baker (Trustee) and Mr C Lomas
(Trustee) are University employees. )

During the year the trust paid £24,254 (2023: £19,500) to the University of Bolton in respect of hire of
the sports hall

In entering into the transaction, the academy trust has complied with the requirements of the
Academy Trust Handbook 2023.

At the balance sheet date the amount due to University of Bolton was £Nil (2023 - £Nil).

Play Pals Childcare Ltd

(Play Pals Childcare Ltd - a company in which M Doyle (CEO) and T Hewitt (CFO) are directors of
Play Pals Childcare Ltd.)

During the year the trust paid £1,141 (2023: £2,289) to Play Pals Childcare Ltd.

In entering into the transaction, the academy trust has complied with the requirements of the
Academy Trust Handbook 2023.

At the balance sheet date the amount due to Play Pals Childcare Ltd was £Nil (2023 - £Nil).

Liverpool Diocesan Board of Finance

(The members of the trust are appointees of the Dioceses and the chair of Trustees is connected to
Liverpool Diocesan Board of Finance)

During the year the trust paid £2,880 (2023: £2,580) in respect of partnership agreement costs and
conference expenses.

In entering into the transaction, the academy trust has complied with the requirements of the
Academy Trust Handbook 2023.

At the balance sheet date the amount due to Liverpool Diocesan Board of Finance was £Nil (2023 -
£Nil).

All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of
the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April
2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust’s financial regulations
and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.
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29 Related party transactions (continued)

Income related party transactions
During the year the academy made the following related party transactions:

University of Bolton

(An organisation in which Baroness Helen Newlove (Member) is Pro Vice Chancellor of University of
Bolton, Andrew Roberts (Trustee) is Governor and Professor Baker (Trustee) and Mr C Lomas
(Trustee) are University employees. )

The University Collegiate received £8,700 (2023: Nil) in respect of Placement income.

Play Pals Childcare Ltd
((Play Pals Childcare Ltd) - a company in which M Doyle (CEO) and T Hewitt (CFO) are directors of
Play Pals Childcare Ltd.)

The trust & its schools received £214,525 (2023: £252,799) from Play Pals Childcare Ltd in respect of
donations and dinner monies.

All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of
the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April
2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust’s financial regulations
and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.
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